
 
                     POL K  CO U N T Y,  WI S CO N S I N 

W W W . C O . P O L K . W I . U S  
 

                                       Notice of Meeting and Agenda 
Polk County Board of Supervisors 

100 Polk County Plaza, Balsam Lake, Wisconsin 
Polk County Government Center - County Board Room 

Tuesday, July 17, 2018 
Regular Business Meeting, 6:00 p.m.  

Open Session 
 

Order of Business: 
1. Call to Order 
2. Receipt of Evidence and Opinion on Proper Notice 
3. Roll Call 
4. Pledge of Allegiance 
5. Time of Reflection 
6. Approval of Agenda  
7. Matters Offered For Adoption on Consent Agenda: 

a. Consideration/corrections to the published minutes from June 19, 2018 County 
Board Meeting  

8. Public Comments –3 minutes per person –not to exceed 30 minutes total 
9. West Central Wisconsin Regional Planning Commission and Regional Loan Fund 

Update – Lynn Nelson, WCWRPC Executive Director 
10. County Board Chair Report 

a. Supervisor’s Reports from Outside Committee Meetings Attended 
11. Administrator’s Report, Jeff Fuge 

a.   Confirmation of Appointments – Interim Land Information Director 
b.   Other appointments 

**Following the Administrator’s Report, the County Board will convene as the 
Committee of the Whole on matters noticed herein.  The Committee of the Whole may 
receive information, deliberate and provide the County Board with recommendation 
concerning such noticed Subject matters.  The Committee of the Whole may not take 
final action on such matter.  Once the Committee of the Whole adjourns and the County 
Board reconvenes to conduct legislative activity, the County Board may take action on 
such matters noticed herein and recommended by the Committee of the Whole, only 
upon two-thirds majority vote of members present to take up and act upon such 
matters. 

12. Committee of the Whole:   
a. Update on Highway Facility 
b. Naming of Highway Facility 
c. Retention of Legal Counsel for County Board 

1

http://www.co.polk.wi.us/


d. Development of County Plan for Treatment Facilities and Programs to Address 
Methamphetamine Use 

e. Discussion of Resolutions and Ordinances Noticed on the Agenda 
f. Adjournment of Committee of the Whole 

Following adjournment of the Committee of the Whole, the County Board will reconvene as 
a legislative body to take up, consider and act upon the subject matters identified herein, as 
follows: 

13. Reconvene as County Board 
14. Motion to Act on Matters Considered and Recommended by the Committee of the 

Whole, as noticed in number 16, above. 
15. Committee Reports and Proposed Resolutions and Ordinances: 
 

On Recommendation by Executive Committee: 
a.   Resolution No. 59-18: Resolution Concerning County Labor and Materials Used in              

Highway Facility Project   
b. Resolution No. 62-18: Resolution To Apply Main Facility Contingency Funds for 

Improvements to Bishop Building (Building Two) for the Polk County Highway 
Garage Public Improvement Project 

c. Resolution No. 63-18: Resolution to Award Construction Contracts for Highway 
Facility Project – Bid Package #4 (Low Voltage, Landscaping and Demolition of 
Existing Highway Shop) 

d. Resolution No. 64-18: Resolution to Amend Authorization for Contingency 
Expenditures of Highway Facility Improvement Project 
 

              On Recommendation by Environmental Services Committee: 
e. Environmental Services Committee Report 
f. Resolution No. 55-18: Resolution Providing for Expansion of Polk County UW-

Extension 4-H Program Services 
g. Resolution No. 56-18: Resolution to Authorize Lease Agreement for AT&T 

Telecommunications Tower on County Forest Land and Application for 
Withdrawal of Lands from County Forest 

h. Ordinance No. 53-18: Acquisition and Sale of Tax Deeded Lands 
               

On Recommendation by General Government Committee and Environmental Services      
Committee: 

i. Resolution No. 52-18: Resolution Concerning the Closure of Lime Quarry 
Operations and the Future Use of Disposition of Lime Quarry Assets 

On Recommendation by General Government Committee 
j.    General Government Committee Report 
k.   Resolution No. 54-18: Resolution to Authorize Application for WI DNR 

Recreational Trails Grant to Fund Resurfacing Project on Gander Dancer State 
Trail 

 

2



l. Resolution No. 57-18: Resolution to Establish the Non-limited 1.0 FTE Position of 
Administrative Assistant to the County Administrator 

m. Resolution No. 58-18: Resolution to Establish the Information Privacy and 
Security Manual and to Provide for Updated HIPAA/HITECH Policies 

On Recommendation by Health and Human Services Board: 
n. Health & Human Services Board Report 
o. Resolution No. 60-18: Resolution to Enhance Program of Service Plan for 

Criminal Justice Collaborating Council 
p. Resolution No. 61-18: Resolution Concerning the Development of Plans for 

Treatment Facilities and Programs to Address Methamphetamine Use 
    On Recommendation by Public Safety and Highway Committee: 

q. Public Safety & Highway Committee Report 

Resolution with No Committee Recommendation (Sponsored by Supervisor O’Connell): 

r. Resolution No. 65-18: Resolution Providing for a Moratorium on the 
Administration of County Rural Road/Address Numbering System  

16. Supervisors Announcements  
17. Adjourn 

This meeting is open to the public according to Wisconsin State Statute 19.83. Persons with disabilities 
wishing to attend and/or participate are asked to notify the County Clerk’s office (715-485-9226) at least 24 
hours in advance of the scheduled meeting time so all reasonable accommodations can be made. Requests 
are confidential. 

3



          Polk County Board of Supervisors 
Polk County Government Center - County Board Room 

100 Polk County Plaza, Balsam Lake, Wisconsin 
 

Minutes of the Regular Meeting 
Tuesday, June 19, 2018  

 
Chairman Dean Johansen called the regular June 19, 2018 meeting of the Polk County Board of 
Supervisors to order at 6:02 p.m. 
 
Chairman Johansen recognized the County Clerk for purposes of receiving evidence of proper 
notice. The County Clerk stated that the notice of meeting was properly posted in the 
Government Center Building, posted on the County website, and published in a legal 
newspaper in accordance with Wisconsin Statute Section 985.02 the week of June 11, 2018. In 
addition, the Office of the County Clerk distributed on June 8, 2018 copies of such notice of 
meeting and proposed resolutions to supervisors via e-mail and mail in accordance with Article 
3, Section 2 of the County Board Rules of Order.  
 
The County Board received verbal opinion of Corporation Counsel Fuge that the initial advance 
written notice, posted and published as described by the Clerk satisfied the applicable provision 
of Wisconsin Open Meetings Law and the applicable procedural provisions of the Polk County 
Board Rules of Order.  
 
Chairman Johansen recognized the County Clerk for purposes of taking roll call. All fifteen 
County Board Supervisors were present representing a quorum.     
 
Chairman Johansen led the County Board in the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
Chairman Johansen called for a Time of Reflection. Chairman Johansen offered a time of 
reflection remembering neighboring counties to the north that have experienced flooding and 
at least one death due to 6-12 inches of rain. 
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor consideration and approval of the Agenda as published. 
Motion (Bonneprise/Demulling) to adopt the Agenda as published. Chairman Johansen called 
for a voice vote on said motion. Motion carried by unanimous voice vote.  
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor for approval of the Consent Agenda. Motion 
(Masters/Jepsen) to adopt the Consent Agenda as noticed. Chairman Johansen called for a 
voice vote on the motion to adopt Consent Agenda. Motion carried by unanimous voice vote.  

4



Matters adopted under the Consent Agenda: Minutes from May 15, 2018 adopted as published. 
Resolution No. 45-18: Resolution to Grant a Zoning District Change and to Amend Zoning 
District Map for Town of Alden adopted, and Resolution No. 46-18: Resolution to Grant a 
Zoning District Change and to Amend Zoning District Map for Town of Black Brook adopted. 
 
Time was given for public comment. Board received public comment. Board received 
informational packet from Mr. Joel Hazzard regarding possible Homes Court address changes. 
 
County Board received Chairman’s report notifying them that Chairman Johansen will be on the 
radio with Radio Bob on Tuesday, June 26, 2018.  
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor confirmation of the following appointments announced 
at the May 15, 2018 Board of Supervisors meeting: 
 
Polk County Economic Development Corporation-Chris Nelson 
Polk County Tourism Council-Joe Demulling 
Gandy Dancer Trail Commission-Michael Prichard  
Polk County Housing Authority-Jim Edgell 
WITC Board Nominating Committee-Dean Johansen 
Northern Region Trail Advisory Council (NoRTAC)-Chris Nelson, Deb Peterson 
Local Emergency Planning Committee (LEPC)-John Bonneprise 
Aging and Disability Resource Center Board (ADRC)-Dean Johansen, Tracy LaBlanc, Joe 
Demulling 
Greater Wisconsin Agency on Aging Resources (GWAAR)-Larry Jepsen 
West Central Wisconsin Regional Planning Commission (WCRPC)-William Johnson, Tracy 
LaBlanc, Joe Demulling 
WestCAP Representative-Larry Jepsen 
Indianhead Federated Library System (IFLS)-Michael Prichard 
Library Plan for Service- appointment deferred 
Revolving Loan Fund-Kim O’Connell 
County Board Consortium-Jay Luke 
Momentum West-deferred 
Workforce Development Board-appointment deferred 
Northwest Regional Planning- appointment deferred 
Arnell Memorial Humane Society-Michael Larsen (assigned as County Board liaison) 
Polk County Fair Society-John Bonneprise (Assigned as County Board Liaison) 
ITBEC- appointment deferred 
 
Chairman Johansen called for a motion to confirm said appointments. Motion (Larsen/Masters) 
to confirm said appointments. Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote on the motion to 
confirm said appointments. Motion to confirm appointments carried by unanimous voice vote.  
 
County Board received verbal reports from Supervisors regarding outside committee meetings 
and conferences attended.  

5



County Board received attached Administrator’s report from Interim Administrator Fuge. 
 
County Board received announcement of appointments to Lake Districts. Administrator Fuge 
announced the appointments of the following persons to Polk County Lake Districts as 
nominated by the Environmental Services Committee: 
 

POLK COUNTY LAKE DISTRICT APPOINTMENTS - 2018 
Lake District Appointee 

Largon Paul Frank 

Big Butternut Doug Route 

Bone Doug Route 

Antler Chris Nelson 

Balsam Dave Mariani 

Half Moon Chris Nelson 

Horseshoe Tracy LaBlanc 

Magnor Tracy LaBlanc 

Pipe Tracy LaBlanc 

Big Round Brian Masters 

Blake Brian Masters 

Long Brian Masters 

White Ash Brian Masters 

Apple River Flowage Jeanne Hancock 

Amery Lakes Mick Larsen 

Church Pine/Round/Big Lakes John Bonneprise 

Cedar Joe Demulling 

 
Chairman Johansen called for a motion to confirm said appointments. Motion (Jepsen/Edgell) 
to confirm said appointments. Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote on the motion to 
confirm said appointments. Motion to confirm appointments carried by unanimous voice vote.  
 
Chairman Johansen called for a motion to convene as Committee of the Whole. Motion 
(LaBlanc/Route) to convene as Committee of the Whole. Chairman Johansen called for a voice 
vote on said motion. Motion to convene as Committee of the Whole carried by unanimous 
voice vote at 6:44 p.m.  

6



 
Chairman Johansen called upon Highway Commissioner Norby for status report on Highway 
Facility project. Committee received slide show of highway building progress from Highway 
Commissioner Norby. August 13 is the projected move in date for the highway department. 
 
Chair Johansen called on Deputy Administrator Jerrick to provide update on change orders as 
outlined on Administrator’s Report. Recommendation regarding sand and labor costs not 
included on current change order documentation may be considered during July Board 
Meeting.  
 
Committee of the Whole engaged in discussion of resolutions andordinances noticed on the 
agenda.  
 
Chairman Johansen called for a motion to adjourn Committee of the Whole session and 
reconvene in legislative session of the Board.  Motion (Bonneprise/Demulling) to adjourn 
Committee of the Whole session. Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote on the motion. 
Motion carried by unanimous voice vote. Committee of the Whole adjourned 7:14 p.m. 
 
Chairman Johansen called for a recess at 7:14 p.m. Chairman Johansen called the Board back 
into legislative session at 7:24 p.m. 
 
County Board received written report on standing committee meetings from Administrator 
Fuge. 
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor, Ordinance No. 15-18:  Amended Polk County Shoreland 
Protection Zoning Ordinance. Chairman Johansen called for a motion to adopt Ordinance No. 
15-18. Motion (O’Connell/Olson) to adopt Ordinance No. 15-18.  
 
Motion (O’Connell/Edgell) to further amend Ordinance No. 15-18 by inserting at Article 8. C. 
3. “(b) Accessory buildings are allowed on class 3 waterways without the limitation listed in sub 
(a) above.”  Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote on motion to further amend Ordinance 
No. 15-18. Motion to further amend Ordinance No. 15-18 carried by unanimous voice vote.  
 
Chairman Johansen called for a Roll Call vote to adopt Ordinance No. 15-18 as further 
amended.  Motion to adopt Ordinance No. 15-18 as further amended carried by Roll Call vote 
with 13 voting yes and 2 voting no (voting no: Supervisors Nelson and Prichard). Ordinance No. 
15-18:  Amended Polk County Shoreland Protection Zoning Ordinance enacted as further 
amended.  
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor, Ordinance No. 17-18:  Amended Polk County 
Comprehensive Land Use Ordinance. Chairman Johansen called for a motion to adopt 
Ordinance No. 17-18. Motion (Olson/Edgell) to adopt Ordinance No. 17-18.  
 

7



Motion (Olson/Masters) to further amend ordinance as per Environmental Services Committee 
recommendations; Section 10.5.6(B)(3), to read as follows: 
 
“A travel trailer is allowed to be used on a lot 14 out of every 60 days without a permit, unless 4 
or 5 below apply.” 
 
Section 10.5.6(B)(4)(a), to read as follows:  “Must have an approved sanitary system installed by 
a Wisconsin licensed plumber (privies are not an allowed system). A non-plumbing sanitary 
system is installed. If there is a well, a state sanitary system must be installed in compliance 
with the Polk County Private Onsite Wastewater (POWTS) Ordinance.” 
 
Section 10.5.6(B)(5), to create section 10.5.6(B)(5)(d), to read as follows:  
d. A non-plumbing sanitary system is installed. If there is a well, a state sanitary system must be 
installed in compliance with the Polk County Private Onsite Wastewater (POWTS) Ordinance.” 
Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote to further amend Ordinance No. 17-18 with said 
changes. Motion to further amend Ordinance No. 17-18 carried by majority voice vote.  
 
Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote to approve the motion to adopt Ordinance No. 17-18 
as amended.  Motion to adopt Ordinance No. 17-18 as further amended carried by majority 
voice vote with two opposed. Ordinance No. 17-18:  Amended Polk County Comprehensive 
Land Use Ordinance enacted as further amended.  
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor, Ordinance No. 20-18:  Amended Polk County Board of 
Adjustment Procedures Ordinance. Chairman Johansen called for a motion to adopt Ordinance 
No. 20-18. Motion (Edgell/LaBlanc) to adopt Ordinance No. 20-18. Chairman Johansen called 
for a voice vote to approve the motion to adopt Ordinance No. 20-18.  Motion to adopt 
Ordinance No. 20-18 carried by majority voice vote with two opposed. Ordinance No. 20-18:  
Amended Polk County Board of Adjustment Procedures Ordinance enacted.  
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor, Resolution No. 42-18: Resolution for Approval of Lakes 
Improvement Fund Capital Project.  Chairman Johansen called for a motion to adopt Resolution 
No. 42-18. Motion (Arcand/Jepsen) to adopt Resolution No. 42-18. Chairman Johansen called 
upon Supervisor Masters to provide information regarding the resolution to the Board. 
Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote to adopt Resolution No. 42-18. Motion to adopt 
Resolution No. 42-18 carried by unanimous voice vote. Resolution No. 42-18: Resolution for 
Approval of Lakes Improvement Fund Capital Project adopted.  
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor, Resolution No. 49-18: Resolution to Accept Ambulance 
and Monetary Donation for Mobile Command Center. Chairman Johansen called for a motion 
to adopt Resolution No. 49-18. Motion (Jepsen/Bonneprise) to adopt Resolution No. 49-18. 
Chairman Johansen called upon Supervisors Masters and Luke to provide information regarding 
the resolution to the Board. Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote to adopt Resolution No. 
49-18. Motion to adopt Resolution No. 49-18 carried by unanimous voice vote. Resolution No. 

8



49-18: Resolution to Accept Ambulance and Monetary Donation for Mobile Command Center 
adopted. 
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor, Resolution No. 50-18: Resolution to Authorize Write Off 
of Certain Uncollectible Accounts of Community Services Division; Lime Quarry and Golden Age 
Manor. Chairman Johansen called for a motion to adopt Resolution No. 50-18. Motion 
(Jepsen/Masters) to adopt Resolution No. 50-18.  
 
Motion (Masters/Arcand) to amend Resolution No. 50-18 to add addendum titled “Polk County 
Accounts Receivable requested to be written off – June 2018” including detail of amounts to be 
written off. Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote on said amendment. Motion to amend 
Resolution No. 50-18 by adding addendum carried by unanimous voice vote.  
Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote to adopt Resolution No. 50-18 as amended. Motion 
to adopt Resolution No. 50-18 as amended carried by majority voice vote with one opposed. 
Resolution No. 50-18: Resolution to Authorize Write Off of Certain Uncollectible Accounts of 
Community Services Division; Lime Quarry and Golden Age Manor adopted as amended. 
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor, Resolution No. 51-18: Resolution Authorizing Entry into 
an Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement Relating to the “Wisconsin Investment Series 
Cooperative” and Authorizing Participation in the Investment Programs of the Fund. 
Chairman Johansen called for a motion to adopt Resolution No. 51-18. Motion 
(Jepsen/Prichard) to adopt Resolution No. 51-18. Chairman Johansen called upon Polk County 
Treasurer Nissen to provide information regarding WISC and investment procedures to County 
Board. 
 
Motion (Masters/Jepsen) to amend Resolution No. 51-18 to add signature page addendum to 
resolution. Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote on said amendment. Motion to amend 
Resolution No. 51-18 to add signature page carried by unanimous voice vote.  
 
Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote to adopt Resolution No. 51-18 as amended. Motion 
to adopt Resolution No. 51-18 as amended carried by unanimous voice vote. Resolution No. 51-
18: Resolution Authorizing Entry into an Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement Relating to 
the “Wisconsin Investment Series Cooperative” and Authorizing Participation in the Investment 
Programs of the Fund adopted as amended. 
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor, Resolution No. 47-18: Resolution to Develop Uniform 
Rural Addressing and Road Numbering Ordinance. Chairman Johansen called for a motion to 
adopt Resolution No. 47-18. Motion (Olson/Route) to adopt Resolution No. 47-18. Chairman 
Johansen called upon Supervisor Olson to provide information to Board regarding resolution. 
Motion (Route/LaBlanc) to amend Resolution No. 47-18 on line 29 to strike June and insert 
“July”. Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote to amend Resolution 47-18. Motion to amend 
failed by voice vote. 
 

9



Motion (Arcand/Bonneprise) to postpone action on Resolution No. 47-18 and refer back to 
Committee.  
Motion (Nelson -without a second) to further amend motion to postpone action on Resolution 
No 47-18 and refer back to committee striking “Public Safety and Highway Committee” and 
inserting “Committee of the Whole” on Line 26 and 27 of the Resolution. Chairman Johansen 
declared Supervisor Nelson motion would not be considered and that vote would be taken on 
Arcand/Bonneprise motion.  
Chairman Johansen called for a roll call vote on the amendment. Motion to postpone and refer 
back to Committee failed by roll call vote with 7 voting yes and 8 voting no (voting yes were 
Supervisors Nelson, Jepsen, Luke, Larsen, Arcand, Bonneprise, and Demulling).  
 
Motion (Prichard/Masters) to delete “by June” on line 29 and have no date on line 29 of the 
resolution. 
 
Motion (Bonneprise/no second) to rescind the February letter sent by Zoning Department to 
residents of Homes Court. Chairman Johansen declared motion out of order.  
 
Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote on the motion to amend Resolution No. 47-18 to 
delete the words “ by June” and have no date on line 29 of the resolution. Motion to amend 
Resolution No. 47-18 as said carried by majority voice vote. 
 
Motion (O’Connell/Nelson) to put all address changes in Polk County on hold temporarily (place 
a moratorium on address changes). 
 
Point of order called by Supervisor Arcand that the stated amendment was not appropriate in 
the context of Resolution No. 47-18.  
Supervisors O’Connell/Nelson withdrew motion to put all address changes in Polk County on 
hold. Supervisor O’Connell will possibly check into a resolution regarding a temporary 
moratorium on address changes. 
 
Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote to adopt Resolution No. 47-18 as amended. Motion 
to adopt Resolution No. 47-18 as amended carried by majority voice vote with 3 opposed. 
Resolution No. 47-18: Resolution to Develop Uniform Rural Addressing and Road Numbering 
Ordinance adopted as amended (“by June” removed from line 29). 
 
Time was given for Supervisors Announcements. Board received reports from Supervisors. 
 
Chairman Johansen called for a motion to adjourn. Motion (Larsen/Bonneprise) to adjourn. 
Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote on the motion to adjourn. Motion to adjourn carried 
by unanimous voice vote.  Chairman Johansen declared meeting adjourned 8:52 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
 

10



Sharon E. Jorgenson, Polk County Clerk 
 
 
 

11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43


	County Board Agenda 7-17-2018
	Minutes 6-19-18
	Res 59-18 July
	Res 62-18 July
	Res 63-18 July
	Res 64-18 July
	Res 55-18 July
	Res 56-18 July
	Ord 53-18 July
	Res 52-18 July
	Res 54-18 July
	Res 57-18 July
	Res 58-18 July
	Res 60-18 July
	Res 61-18 July



